## Unapproved Approved Candia's Selectmen's Public Meeting Minutes June 13, 2016

**Attendance:** Chairman Boyd Chivers, Vice-Chair Susan Young, Selectman Scott Komisarek, Selectman Russ Dann, Selectman Mark Laliberte, and Administrative Assistant Andria Hansen.

Chairman Chivers called the Public Meeting to order and immediately followed with the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Board to consider appointment of Craig Cartier to the CVFD. Fire Chief Young introduced Craig Cartier. He noted that Craig has grown up in Candia. He has gone to the tech and he is also an EMT and has his Firefighter II, so he has quite a bit of training. It is his recommendation that the Board appoint Craig Cartier. Selectman Dann moved to appoint Craig Cartier as a member of the Candia Volunteer Fire Department based on Fire Chief Young's recommendation. Seconded by Selectman Laliberte. All were in favor. Motion carried.

Fire Chief Young mentioned the donations. The Fire Department received the Lucas chest compression machine and the AED's as donations. The Association raises money every year and they try to give it back to the town in one way or another. They try to buy some stuff that is going to help people. He explained the Lucas does chest compressions, it is a CPR machine. Chief McGillen said it was a great tool.

Departmental Reports: Fire, Police, Highway, Parks & Recs, Building, & Solid Waste.

**Fire:** Selectman Dann read from the attached Fire Department report.

**Police:** Chief McGillen mentioned the opioid discussion (May 23<sup>rd</sup> BOS meeting). He has been in touch with the Making It Happen coalition. He would like to get something on the town website and Selectman Laliberte has offered to help out with that. He thought there should be a link on the website, because there is going to be a lot of information. A drug drop off box was also mentioned at the last meeting. He didn't think they needed a drop off box at the police department. If any residents want to drop off any prescription medication they can bring it down anytime and they'll take it and put it in the evidence room. When the DEA has an annual take back day they will deposit it there. They also have a bunch of gun locks available; they are from Project Child Safe. They've had them for several years and they are available to anyone. They are free and come with instructions. Selectman Laliberte suggested that he put that out on Nixle. Chief McGillen noted they have free bicycle helmets as well. He is going to be at the Touch-A-Truck event on June 25<sup>th</sup>. It's going to be at the Moore School and held by the Candia Community Woman's Club. Emergency Management Director Bob Panit just recertified all of the officers for CPR and AED training. John Siedner also trained them on the LUCAS chest compression machine. They have been getting some calls on identity fraud. A resident came in the other day and someone logged into their Comcast account and changed their password. The resident ended up calling Comcast security and someone out of the country got a hold of their phone number, so when you called this persons house it is call forwarding. Officer Langlois called the resident's number and some guy called back and when he heard it was the Candia Police Department he hung up. He was antagonizing the resident, saying he'll never catch him. It is frustrating on the police department's

end because five of her credit cards and one of her bank accounts was compromised. She didn't lose anything, but they tried to call from California and purport themselves to be her and give another woman's name and address in San Diego. They get the email address and phone number to get access to the accounts. The resident had to shut everything down and put a credit freeze on her accounts. He called San Diego PD and they couldn't find that person at that address. These people are way ahead of law enforcement. He encouraged people to report stuff to them. They also have some websites the residents can go to if they are victims. Selectman Laliberte asked if they were targeting senior citizens or everybody. Chief McGillen said everybody.

**Highway:** Road Agent Lewis read from the attached report. He met with paving companies for the summer road work. Paving prices have come down dramatically. He was hoping they could get more done then they thought. They are going to do all of the road reconstruction in July and August rather than May and August. It will save them about \$4,000 by grouping them together. He's hoping with the money they save he can do a piece of Old Manchester Road, the west end of that is in terrible shape. It's a concrete road underneath so all they can do is a shim overlay. They are going to start the second week in July. They are going to grind Diamond Hill and Forest Drive. Once they are ready they'll pave them the last week in July. They will do the Critchett Road overlay at the same time. In August they'll go over to Chester Turnpike and do a half mile over there. Then they'll do Christine Lane and Douglas Drive. If money allows they will do Old Manchester Road. Chairman Chivers mentioned that Marcel Lupien of Merrill Road was in the office today. He mentioned that there is brush blocking residents view when turning onto High Street. Road Agent Lewis said it is a sight distance issue that happens every year on that road. Chairman Chivers asked if they could mow it. Road Agent Lewis said it is a third of a mile down the road and when you are coming out of Merrill Road and looking to the east you can't see. He'll look at it tomorrow to see if it is something he can mow or he'll call the state and see if they will. There is a whole section of Japanese Knotweed there and the state doesn't like to mow it because it only makes it worse. This time of year you get all of the sight distance calls because the trees have leafed out.

**Parks and Recreation:** Selectman Komisarek noted the infield has been resurfaced. They got some fence ties and mended the fence. They got new nets for the basketball hoops and they scraped and painted the backboards. He has received some positive comments from people. Selectman Laliberte asked if they were going to reset the basketball hoops. Selectman Komisarek said he and Road Agent Lewis looked at them; they wanted them to be at 10 feet. They pulled one up and got it pretty straight. These hoops and backboards are commercial grade and one of them has rusted right through. He would like to get them sandblasted and refinished over the winter. Someone asked him why they don't have a light at the skateboard ramp. Selectman Young thought they were supposed to take the old library light. Selectman Komisarek said he had to look into that. He didn't know if this was a budget thing and if they had to get it into the budget for next year. Selectman Young mentioned at the recent Budget Committee meeting there were a couple of parents who wanted to thank the town for fixing up the park. They really appreciated it. Selectman Komisarek said it was coming around. The Candia Community Woman's Club wanted to do a beautification. They might repaint the score board. Selectman Laliberte said it still doesn't solve the long term problem of who is using it. He thought it was great that people were using it. The problem is now they have other facilities. They have two teams that use it, a public and a private school for merely softball. Selectman Komisarek said that is not what he has seen. They have games there on Friday, Saturday, and Monday, so they have Steve mow on Thursday. He thought the CYAA field had a sun problem and they may have a shortage of fields. Selectman Laliberte said he would love to see

it more utilized. It's something that if it was more utilized it reflects on the town. There is a level of pride there. Selectman Dann felt if they get more people taking pride in it they'll make more use of it. Building Inspector Murray told Selectman Komisarek that Dick Snow had the lighting for the skateboard area set up with donations. He was going to set up a pole and have it wired and this lead to the conversation of who was going to pay for the electricity. He suggested talking to Mr. Snow if this is something he wanted to move forward with. Chairman Chivers asked if there was a demand for lighting at the skateboard park. Selectman Komisarek said he heard from Sean James who brings his two sons over there. He can't understand why they don't have a light there. They light up the basketball area, but there are more kids skateboarding. Resident Judy Szot said she has a residential light outside and it is \$15 per month. Selectman Komisarek said he would get in touch with Mr. Snow.

**Building:** Building Inspector Murray read from the attached report. The numbers are up from last year. The same four code enforcement cases are still open. Chairman Chivers said they had a wheel chair bound resident call this week and complain that she couldn't get in the front door with her wheelchair. Selectman Dann asked if the wheelchair would have enough clearance to get through the door. Chairman Chivers said the switch would be 5 or 6 feet away from the door. Building Inspector Murray said he would look into this.

Solid Waste: Selectman Dann read from the attached report. He mentioned since the implementation of the \$20 fee the amount of televisions coming in has gone down. Last week they had four televisions come in. Chuck is trying to find local people to do the insulation in the building, but they haven't gotten back to him. So he is going to start looking outside of town. He'll get some quotes. Selectman Dann mentioned that glass recycling could become an issue in the future. Some town's take the glass, grind it up and use it. He noted Mr. Broadwater starts on Wednesday at the recycling center. Selectman Laliberte asked what other towns do with the ground glass. Selectman Dann said that New London had been using it in their roads as a base. Road Agent Lewis explained usually the towns that will take it have a gravel pit where they crush their own town gravel. You don't want to use it on a gravel road, but if you pave over it that's fine. You need to have it blended. He noted every town usually gets more than their fair share of glass once they start taking it. Chairman Chivers asked if Pike would take it in Hooksett. Road Agent Lewis didn't think so. You can't put it in asphalt; you can only put it in gravel and it has to be blended properly. Selectman Dann thought recycling glass could be a problem for New Hampshire in the future. It is an issue that is being discussed. There was some further discussion about the insulation project at the recycling center. Building Inspector Murray asked if they had a contractor that was going to do the job. Selectman Dann said no and that's the problem. He talked to Chuck and he hasn't found someone. Chairman Chivers said it should get done before the winter. Selectman Dann explained that Chuck has asked people and they haven't gotten back to him. Citizen Rudy Cartier said he brought a 12" television to the recycling center and paid the \$20 which he didn't mind paying. He talked with other towns and they have a graduated scale and he thought it was pretty excessive to spend \$20 on a 12" television when you are charging \$20 for a 48" television. It doesn't seem appropriate or fair. He didn't want to see people start dumping on the roadside. He thought even if it is \$10 it will still probably scare people away from coming in. It seems like a lot for a small item. Chairman Chivers said for an average sized television it is right on the money. Selectman Dann added they aren't charging for any other electronics and other towns are. They had to do something to stop what was happening. They are filling their container within three to four weeks and it costs \$1,000 to ship that container out. Selectman Komisarek asked Selectman Dann to look into the recycling center getting more than their fair share of construction debris. He was

told that some of the surrounding towns charge. He talked with a number of residents and this could potentially be an issue because it is free. Selectman Dann noted the guys at the recycling center know the contractors in town. Selectman Komisarek said he has done quite a bit of demo and he has been there quite a few times. If he had to pay he would understand. He thought they should look at the surrounding communities and see what they are doing. Selectman Dann said the issue is if the contractor is working outside of the town and they bring the stuff to Candia. Selectman Komisarek said it could be a nominal fee. Chairman Chivers asked Selectman Dann if he would like to look into this. Selectman Dann said he has already spoke to Chuck about this. They received tons of it last month, so it is a factor. It should be researched and Chuck has been watching it. Selectman Komisarek asked if Chuck was in agreement and does he think they are getting stuff from other towns. Selectman Dann said Chuck felt if there are local contractors using the dump it could happen. You could implement a fee and then local contractors will put a dumpster on the site. Selectman Komisarek noted they don't have the ability to weigh things. Selectman Young asked if they could do a reminder to the local contractors that the facility should be used for community members. Chairman Chivers suggested Chuck asks the contractors for the building permit number. If they can't produce a Candia building permit then it's probably someone from out of town. Selectman Young didn't think the residents should be charged a fee, but stuff from other communities is a different story. Selectman Komisarek said the Candia Recycling Center has a good customer service attitude, but it's different in other towns. Our town is friendlier. Selectman Dann agreed and our guys are very helpful. They help people so the line can move faster. Chairman Chivers suggested that Selectman Dann talk with Chuck and come back to the next meeting with some ideas. Citizen Rudy Cartier said this would be something the Recycling and Energy Committee could work on and they could do the leg work for them. He mentioned that you want to make sure the towns folk who are doing their work have a place to get rid of their stuff because they are paying their taxes. Some of the towns have said they won't accept any commercial dumping at all, because they have these problems. He mentioned that he has a summer place in Surry, Maine and the recycling center he goes to actually put a scale in. They are charging by the pound to get rid of the stuff. They had huge problems with this stuff filling their landfill. Selectman Young said if this goes into effect in Candia, the burns permits will go up. Selectman Dann said he would check into it and report back to the Board. Selectman Komisarek said the cost is relevant and what is the potential savings.

The Board of Selectmen will hold a public hearing to accept quarterly grants and donations in accordance with RSA 31:95-b, III, (a). Selectman Laliberte announce the grant received for the first quarter — State of New Hampshire Highway Block grant in the amount of \$21,807.49. Selectman Laliberte announced the donations for the first quarter — Lucas chest compression machine, 5 automated external defibrillators (AED's) in the amount of \$19,999.90. The other donation was from Mr. Rene Lemay who returned the surplus from the sale of his tax deeded property to the town in the amount of \$25,459.75. The total amount of donations was \$45,459.65. Selectman Dann moved to accept the State of New Hampshire Highway Block Grant in the amount of \$21,807.49. Seconded by Selectman Young. Selectman Young moved to accept the Lucas chest compression machine and 5 AED's in the amount of \$19,999.90. Seconded by Selectman Dann. Selectman Laliberte moved to accept the donation of \$25,457.75 from Rene Lemay. Seconded by Chairman Chivers. Chairman Chivers called for a vote. All were in favor. Motion carried.

**Upcoming Town Events of Interest:** Chairman Chivers mentioned that they will be opening up the hearse house at the Fitts Museum on June 18<sup>th</sup> at 2:30 pm. The Historical Society has sponsored this and it is a beautiful building. He urged people to go up and take a look. The hearse

will be there and all set up. Selectman Dann added a lot of people donated their time on that. Chairman Chivers mentioned the CYAA will be holding their end of the season party over at the facility starting at noon. They'll be having a BBQ and then play some softball. It was also noted that the Candia Community Woman's Club will be holding their Touch-A-Truck event at the Moore School on June 25<sup>th</sup>. It will be from 10:00 am to 2:00 pm.

The Board to consider changes to the 2017 town budget process. Chairman Chivers explained they start getting immersed in the budget process in September. What he would like to propose between now and September is at the last Selectmen's meeting of every month they take two of the biggest departments and talk about their budgets. They wouldn't nail down any specific numbers, but just to see if there are any big surprises coming or if they have ideas that would be beyond what they budgeted for. It wouldn't be an in depth discussion it would just be a discussion. They'll start off with the Police Department and Highways Department budgets at the end of this month. So if they have any ideas or if they want to buy any new equipment, it would be anything outside of the normal budget presented in September.

## **Other Business**

Recycling & Energy Committee: Selectman Young said this was the last day to accept letters of interest for the Recycling and Energy Committee. She mentioned that they have received two letters of interest. She felt at this point it was like pulling teeth. There aren't enough volunteers to fill this committee. This was a petition article and she didn't know how many or who signed it. It just appears they can't get the five members let alone any alternates. She thought they should explain that to people at town meeting. If they feel strongly about it they'll be a group of them who will sign up to be on the committee. This is her idea maybe someone else has another one. Selectman Dann felt there was a definite need for this committee. When he went to the NRRA meeting, there were a lot of things that came up. They talked about the glass situation and the industrial waste. Right now they don't get anything out to the townspeople about what the fees are at the recycling center. The Town of Merrimack sends out a beautiful brochure to let them know what is happening and what is recyclable. They need to educate the people and he is very much in favor of a committee to do that. Personally he'll work with the committee, but he can't be chasing down the information. He doesn't have the time to do that. He questioned why they couldn't go with four members. Chairman Chivers said the town said it was a five member committee. Selectman Young said unless they want to bring it back to the town and make it a four member committee in March. Selectman Dann said he didn't want to wait until March because there are things they could be working on. For example, the glass situation is going to need a lot of research done on that. If they wait until March they are pushing it down the road. Selectman Young said they tried they gave it another whole month and they advertised it. She thought the recycling information was in the town report. It was also noted the recycling fee schedule is on the website. Chairman Chivers said there was supposed to be at least five candidates for this committee before they started as a committee. This is what they agreed on a month ago. They have received zero responses until today. At the last moment they had a fourth person who indicated an interest, so they still don't have a committee to seat. Selectman Komisarek said he sees the need to have expertise, he didn't think the committee should be charged with educating our consumers. This is part of a professionally run and professionally managed recycling center. They would handle that. He thought fundamentally the committee was a good idea for the more technical issues and if volunteers want to do that legwork that we don't have time for. Who is going to object to someone volunteering their time and doing the legwork? Selectman Laliberte said one of the conversations

he had if the committee was going to get off of the ground is information is free. People can distribute as much information as they want; nothing stops people from bringing information to us. He is torn because he thought this committee would be helpful. The compromise they had two months ago was they would seat five people on this committee. They promoted it and they put it out there. They put it on the website and they noticed it. They received four letters of interest. His feeling is despite the best efforts they didn't fulfill the obligation for the committee proper. This doesn't mean they can't have committee ad hoc. The people that are interested in it bring that information to us. Resident Al Couch said on April 26th he submitted a letter which could be considered a letter of interest in the Recycling and Energy Committee. He listed a page full of possible tasks. A lot of it is gathering information that the Board and the staff at the recycling center will ever have time to do. The committee is willing to put the effort into gathering information and coming up with new ideas. The letter includes what the past Solid Waste Committee has done. The things they did were huge and there are a lot of things they could do in the future. He said the Board could consider him the fifth member of the Recycling and Energy Committee. Selectman Young said she read the five page letter and she felt Mr. Couch was invaluable to the past committee. She took a little offense to the part of the letter which said he would be interested if the Board does the right thing. She found this to be a little bit like if you agree with me than I'll play with you and if not I'll take my ball and go home. Maybe she was wrong on this, but its saying as long as we can do what we want to do and have the people we want on the committee then I'll play. This is the way she interpreted that. Mr. Couch said the Board has the back ground on this. There was a time that someone wanted to be appointed to the Recycling and Energy Committee and was not even given a comment. The issue is not that you do what I say it is follow proper protocols. They should question that person and say they understand they have an interest, but we have some questions for you. They could have done it in a private meeting. If it didn't work out, he would've been fine with that. Selectman Komisarek said clarified that when Rudy came and didn't get a second for his nomination Al quit. There is a history in this town and you hear two different sides of the story. What he thinks about Rudy is here is a guy that is retired and wants to help the town. He noted that he wasn't one of the Selectmen that seconded the motion. There were some things that happened in the past and some people spoke up about it. He though this over quite a bit and called Rudy. He told Rudy in America they move on and some people make mistakes. They have a resident that wants to volunteer his time. He didn't think Rudy could do a lot of harm on the committee. It's an advisory committee. He thought what was important to Al was that the committee gets official recognition. Is it the official recognition that is important? There needs to be a resolution and they need to discuss what went down with Rudy. Some people were upset about this, so let's get it resolved and move forward. Mr. Couch said this Board did not go through the proper steps whether Rudy was appointed or not. This is not the issue; it was that the Board didn't even talk with him or ask him any questions. Selectman Komisarek said it should have been done in a non-public. Selectman Young said they did follow procedure and there was no second and that is why. It was not like they broke the law or we didn't follow procedure. This is Mr. Couch's opinion. Resident Sharon DeWitt said there was been discussion around town about different committees, about the Recycling and Energy Committee specifically. She mentioned it to a friend and he had heard the Selectmen were being picky about who they were appointing on the committee. So basically if you weren't favorable to the Board then they were going to deny you. She's not saying this is what the Board's intent was, but this may be based on what happened and there is a lot of miscommunication in town. She wanted to bring this up to the Board. Chairman Chivers said they have two applications and two appointed committee members and the two applicants that have expressed an interest in being on the committee are Mr. Cartier and Mr. Snow. They still lack a fifth member of the committee to impanel. Selectman Dann noted all of these

people have been involved with recycling all along. These people are volunteering all of the time. They need this committee. Chairman Chivers noted the cut off was June 13<sup>th</sup> at 3:00 pm. Mr. Couch has expressed a willingness to serve on the committee. He noted that Mr. Couch has not submitted a letter of interest. Selectman Young said they have to follow the rules. She appreciates all of the efforts, but she doesn't see a need for a committee. A lot of people do a lot of things in town without being on a committee. Selectman Dann said a committee can get together and discuss this amongst themselves rather than people working individually. They can get together and solve some of the problems. Resident Becky Sarra asked if Selectman Dann will be willing to volunteer for the committee. Does he have the time to participate? Selectman Dann said he would and he has been doing it. He noted if the Board won't accept Al's letter of interest they won't accept his. Resident Judy Szot said in April the Board set a time limit. The time limit has gone by and they've heard the discussion the Board doesn't follow the rules. She thought the Board has been more than generous in allowing people to apply. People have not applied and you have people here that say they'll do it now. How many times do they keep extending the time limit? Selectman Dann said this is not a critical situation. They need to have the Board's approval on it anyhow. Resident Judy Szot said once they do that they set a precedence. Once this Board makes that change and the next time something critical comes in you can't say this is not as important or this is more important. This says our word means nothing. This could come back and bite the Board. Resident Carla Penfield said Mrs. Szot nailed it, other committees put out their ads and they have a deadline. If you don't get your application in before the deadline you are not considered. All of the Boards and Committees do this; it is the process they go through. Resident Rudy Cartier said they Board has to create the committee because it was voted on at the town meeting. This is the will of the people. Second, what happens when they have a vacancy on any Board? Chairman Chivers said they fill it. Mr. Cartier said if they have a vacancy they might only have four people on that Board and they are still going to do their function until another person comes on. They can create the Recycling and Energy Committee with four members. There is nothing saying they can't do that. There was some other interest from people that were afraid to put their name in because they feel that the Board is going to embarrass them publicly. He noted that Selectman Dann said they needed the help and they can give them the help. Road Agent Lewis said why don't they reopen it until it is filled. Resident Rudy Cartier said he could guarantee that it would be filled within two months. He saw the advertisement on the website, but not everyone in Candia reads the website. He noted a lot of this is word of mouth. They could get a lot of people with different people with different expertise. Chairman Chivers asked if there was a consensus amongst this Board to extend the deadline a couple of weeks. Selectman Dann moved to extend the deadline a couple of weeks. Chairman Chivers called for a seconded. Selectman Komisarek said on one hand we are telling these guys to move forward. On the other hand we had a deadline and some pointed out we would be setting a precedence. They had a deadline and they've already extended it. How binding is the fact that they did that? At the end of the day they are splitting hairs and wasting time. He questioned if what was critical was recognition from the Board. Mr. Couch said he could tell him why that is important, but that has nothing to do with the Board. He has toured fifty solid waste facilities in other states and you carry a lot more weight when you call the recycling center/transfer station when you say you are with the Candia Recycling and Energy Committee. When you say you are just someone from the Town of Candia it doesn't carry much weight. Selectman Komisarek said Selectman Dann is saying we need this committee and he is hearing what Selectman Young is saying. At the end of the day he felt this isn't that big of a deal. Selectman Young said neither was the art at the dump, but it was to some people. There may be people who aren't here tonight that it is a big deal to. Selectman Dann said they are talking about a committee. Selectman Komisarek said we generally want them to do this work. Selectman Young asked what their charge is. Selectman Dann said they

have done a lot and there is more to be done. Chairman Chivers read the warrant article "To see if the Town will vote to establish, for the purposes of reducing cost and/or increasing revenues, a recycling/energy committee, consisting of five (5) residents appointed by the Selectmen, initially for three (3) year staggered-terms. Subsequent vacancies shall be appointed by the Selectmen upon the recommendation of the committee. Submitted by petition." Now they are going to see if they can comply with the citizen's wish. This is their job, to carry out the will of the people. Selectman Dann said they have four people the Board can appoint and him as the fifth member. Selectman Laliberte said they don't have a committee, but they have a mandate. The committee demands five people. Forty nine days ago they had this discussion and the goal was to fill the committee with five people. They've gotten four letters of interest within the time. All of a sudden the deadline came and people a throwing their name in and this frustrates them. The people that were interested in this knew the deadline was coming up in mid-June. He understood there were rumors out there if someone came to this Board. Keep in mind there are two new members on this Board and he is one of them. The Selectman in charge over sees the recycling center. If there was any concern he would hope to expect a phone call, email, or some sort of conversation and that never happened. All of a sudden this comes up tonight. All of this aside he did think a committee would be helpful to the town and the town gave us a charge to fill it. He doesn't want to fill it tonight, because he has a lot of questions. If they appoint people they are going to be on the ballot next year. He felt they have to fill the committee but they have to do it right. He hates to do it, but they have to put this out one more time and have a deadline of July 11th. They have to fill the committee. He thought they should push this out to the residents. If someone is afraid to submit a letter of interest have them call him or any of the Selectmen. They have an obligation to fill it, but they have an obligation to do it right. Selectman Young said she mostly agrees with Selectman Laliberte. The only thing she doesn't agree with is extending the date, because it reminds her of a child that keeps asking for something and you say no. They are setting a precedence here and she firmly believes what Mrs. Szot said. All of the signers on that petition had an opportunity to sign up for this committee. They only need five people. The people that submitted and passed this warrant article want it done but don't want to be involved. She didn't agree with extending the deadline. It reminds her of someone that bugs you so much you finally give in. Selectman Dann moved to extend the deadline to accept letters of interest for the Recycling and Energy Committee until July 11th. Russ moved to extend the date until July 11th. Citizen Carla Penfield noted that was a different motion than Selectman Dann's first motion. Selectman Dann withdrew both of his motions. Mr. Couch mentioned that he expressed interest in serving on the Recycling and Energy Committee in his April 26th letter to the Board. Chairman Chivers read the letter and it says "he would consider resubmitting a letter of interest but it would depend on the Boards actions". Mr. Cartier said past Select Boards have been viewed as having a high level of animosity towards volunteers. There is still a bad taste in people's mouths about what past Boards have done. He has asked people to volunteer and they say why to be treated like you're treated. You're all new and going against something that still lingers. It is going to take more than putting an ad on the website. He thought there would have been more applications. He would be more than happy to talk with people and try and get them to volunteer. Mrs. Szot said it is really offensive to blame people who are not in a room to defend themselves. This is not what this Board is about. The Board made a decision you are setting a precedent. The residents had two and a half months to make a decision on this. She noted there were more than twenty five signatures on the petition, but when it is time to step up there is no one here. Resident Becky Sarra asked if they have been given a charge by the town from the March vote. Chairman Chivers read the warrant article again and this is the charge by the town. They've made an effort for a way to impanel that committee. Selectman Laliberte said it is like the Exit 3 property, they have been given a charge on what to do with that land. When they have a charge by the town they

have to adhere to that. Chairman Chivers moved to extend the deadline to July 11<sup>th</sup>, 2016 to accept letters of interest for the Recycling and Energy Committee. Seconded by Selectman Dann. Chairman Chivers, Selectman Dann, Selectman Komisarek, Selectman Laliberte were in favor and Selectman Young was opposed. Motion carried on a vote of 4 to 1. (4-1-0)

Selectman Komisarek said there was equipment in the field house and no one has claimed it. What should he do with this stuff? He was going to reach out to the CYAA. Selectman Dann thought it was a group of people that donated that stuff to run the concession stand. He would assume it is not town property. Selectman Komisarek said he would talk with the CYAA and if they don't want it he is going to dispose of it. He mentioned the storage shed and it is locked. They may need to cut the lock. They want to move the shed. Chairman Chivers asked where to. Selectman Komisarek said probably to the school. He is going to talk to CYAA about this also. He has been talking to Lisa Coty of the Candia Woman's Club and she may know someone that can move the shed.

Selectman Laliberte mentioned that the State Elections are coming up. Past Candidates have come in and spoke with the Board. He didn't know if the Board had any interest of having them come in and meet the Board to introduce themselves. We could give the candidates five to ten minutes to speak. They don't have to make a decision now. He's just mentioning it so they can think about it.

The Board to approve accounts payable and payroll (6/2/16, 6/9/16, 06/16/16). Selectman Laliberte announced the grand total for accounts payable and payroll checks for June 2<sup>nd</sup>, June 9<sup>th</sup>, and June 16<sup>th</sup> was \$484,118.97. Selectman Dann moved to approve the accounts payable and payroll checks for June 2<sup>nd</sup>, June 9<sup>th</sup>, and June 16<sup>th</sup> in the amount of \$484,118.97. Seconded by Chairman Chivers. All were in favor. Motion carried.

**Approval of minutes from previous meeting.** Selectman Laliberte moved to approve the Selectmen's Public Meeting minutes of May 23<sup>rd</sup>, 2016 as amended. Seconded by Selectman Dann. All were in favor. Motion carried. Selectman Dann moved to accept the May 23<sup>rd</sup>, 2016 Non-Public Meeting minutes as presented. Seconded by Selectman Komisarek. All were in favor. Motion carried.

Al Hall mentioned that he attended a meeting about Charitable Trusts today. They mentioned motions on sealing non public meeting minutes. They said you need to seal them within 72 hours or they become public. There was some further discussion about non public session minutes.

Selectman Dann moved to adjourn at 8:41 pm.